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1. Name

historic BaMk ofF ITALY (American B’ ank of Tracy)

and/or common Old Bank of Aﬂlerica Building

2. Location

street & number 528 CENTRAL AVENUE

N/LA- not for publication

city, town  TRACY N/A vicinity ot CoNGRESSIONAL DisTrICT 12
state_ Ca) IFORNIA code () county SaN JOAQUIN code (77
3. Classification ,
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district — public _—_ occupied _——__ agriculture — museum
_X building(3§ _X_ private _X_ unoccupied ___commercial — park
—_ structure — both — work in progress — educational ——_ private residence
—_Ssite Public Acquisition Accessible —_ entertainment ——religious
—_object —Inprocess — yes: restricted ___ government — scientific
tﬁing considered X yes: unrestricted — industrial — transportation
_X_NoT APPLICABLE __ no ___ military _X other: VACANT

4. Owner of Property

name (SEE_CONTINUATION SHEET 1)

street & number

city, town — vicinity of

state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. SAN J C

street & number 24 SoutH HUNTER STREET

city, town STOCKTON

state CALIFORNIA

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Mﬁmmﬂ 1) has this property been determined eligible? ___yes X no
date — federal ___state ____county ___ local
depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

— excellent —deterlorated __ unalitered _X_original site N/
—X— good —ruins —X__ altered ——_moved  date A
— fair — unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

THE Bank oF ITALY BUILDING IS A 2 STORY 40’ X 75'mnaissance  Revival brick building whose
EXTERIOR IS DOMINATED BY A HIGH SECOND STORY WINDOW ARCADE AND ACCENTED WITH A CLASS™
ICAL ENTRANCE CONSISTING OF A GRANITE PEDIMENT WITH A MACHICOLATED CORNICE. THE BUILD"
INGS ORIGINAL EXTERIOR REMAINS INTACT TODAY AS DOES ITS ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING AND
RELATIONSHIP WITH ADJACENT COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS. THE ORIGINAL BANKING INTERIOR HAS
BEEN REMOVED, HOWEVER THE INTERIOR 2 STORY SPACE AND DETAILING REMAIN.

’ N .
THE BANKS EXTERIOR FACADE REMAINS AS ORIGINALLY CONSTRUCTED. THE BUFF COLOR_BRICK AND
MORTAR IS IN VERY GOOD CONDITION AS IS THE GRANITE ENTRY AND GRANITE BASE. [HE SECOND
STORY WINDOW ARCADE, COMPOSED OF 6 LARGE ARCHED windows on the north side and 3 on the
front with each window being 15*' high x 8' wide, remains intact, however, the window
mullions are deteriorating and same of the glass panes are broken.

THE MOST SIGNIFICANT EXTERIOR FACADE ALTERATION_OCCURED WHEN A SIDE DOOR WAS CREATED
TO PROVIDE A SECOND ENTRANCE TO THE BUILDING. THE DATE OF THE ALTERATION IS UNKNOWN,
HOWEVER THE DOOR DOES NOT SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE ARCHITECTURAL QUALITY OF THE EXTERIOR
FACADE, AS THE DOOR IS LOCATED_BELOW THE BOTTOM LINE OF THE 2 STORY WINDOW ARCADE AND
IT IS LOCATED ON THE SECONDARY /TH STREET ELEVATION TOWARDS, THE REAR OF THE BUILDING.

A SECOND ALTERATION TO THE EXTERIOR FACADE OCCURED IN 1975 WHEN THE TWO SMALL FIRST
FLOOR FRONT WINDOWS, FLANKING THE CLASSICAL ENTRANCE, WERE ENLARGED TO FILL THE ENTIRE
SPACE BENEATH THE WINDOWS OF THE FRONT WINDOW ARCADE-

THE LAST ALTERATION TO THE EXTERIOR FACADE, WHICH ALSO OCCURED IN 1975, WAs THE REMOVAL
AND REPLACEMENT OF THE ORIGINAL 2 FRONT OAK-FRAMED DOUBLE SWING GLASS DOORS WITH DOUBLE
SWING WOOD DOORS«

THESE THREE CHANGES DO NOT SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE ARCHITECTURAL INTEGRITY OF THE
EXTERIOR FACADE AS THE dominant SECOND STORY WINDOW ARCADE AND THE NEO~CLASSICAL
ENTRANCE, base, and cornice remin intact.

THE INTERIOR OF THE BANK HAS RECEIVED SOME ALTERATIONS OVER THE YEARS. THE MosT
SIGNIFICANT BEING THE REMOVAL OF THE CLASSIC SYMMETRICAL BANK LAYOUT OF THE FIRST FLOOR,
INCLUDING THE 8’ HIGH OAK, MARBLE AND BRASS TELLER STATION PARTITIONS AND THE REMOVAL
OF THE OAK ENTRY VESTIBULE, THE DESIGN OF WHICH WAS TO MATCH THE CLASSICAL EXTERIOR
GRANITE ENTRANCE. THE ORIGINAL TENNESSEE MARBLE FLOOR MAY ALSO HAVE JBEEN REMOVED.
THE DATES OF THESE REMOVALS ARE UNKNOWN. THE ONLY remant OF THE BANKS OAK, MARBLE
AND BRASS INTERIOR THAT REMAINS IS ONE RESTROOM LOCATED AT THE REAR OF THE BUILDING,
UNDER THE SECOND FLOOR-.

THE INTERIOR SPACE WAS AND REMAINS DOMINATED BY A 15’ LONG X 40’ WIDE SECOND FLOOR
LOCATED AT THE REAR OF THE BUILDING. TIHE SECOND FLOOR IS ENCLOSED ON 3 SIDES BY WALLS
WHILE THE 4TH SIDE IS OPEN, EXCEPT FOR A PLASTER BALUSTRADE WITH SUPPORTING CORBELS.
THE SECOND FLOOR PROVIDES A PANORAMIC VIEW OF THE FIRST FLOOR, THE ENTIRE INTERIOR
SPACE, AND THROUGH THE WINDOW ARCADE, THE OUTSIDE ENVIRONMENT.

THE INTERIOR WALLS ARE PLASTER WITH NO TEXTURE OR RELIEF EXCEPT FOR AN 8% 0AK BASE,
3' x 2' BRASS AIR SUPPLY GRILLS ADJACENT TO THE FLOOR, AND A LARGE CROWN MOLDING. THE
CEILING IS ALSO PLAIN WITH 3 SIMPLE BRASS CHANDELIERS EQUALLY SPACED ALONG THE CENTRAL
EAST-WEST AXIS OF THE BUILDING. OVER EACH CHANDELIER IS A 6’ DIAMETER “ROSETTELIKE®
PLASTER CASTINGe [HE "ROSETTE" CONTAINS MANY OPENINGS WHICH SERVED AS A PART OF THE
VENTILATION SYSTEM FOR THE BUILDING. (SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 7)



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below )

—— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning ____ iandscape architecture ___ religion

—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —__conservation — law —_sclence

—__1500-1599 _*_ agriculture - economics — literature -—— sculpture

—__1600-1699 _* _architecture —— education ___ military ___social/

—1700-1799 __art —engineering — music humanitarian

—1800-1899 _x commerce — exploration/settiement ____ philosophy — theater

—* 1900- ___ communications —_ industry ___politics/government ____ transportation
__invention —— other (specify)

—————————— Gompleted

Specific dates |, v 19, 1919 Builder/Architect UNKNOWN

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

INITIALLY WEST SIDE BANK OF TRACY; LATER THE AMERICAN BAnk oF Tracy, Bank oF ITALY
AND FINALLY BANK OF AMERICA, IS A GOOD EXAMPLE OF THE Renaissance Revival architec-
TURE TYPICAL TO SMALL TOWN BANKS THAT WERE ONCE SO COMMON ON STREET CORNERS IN CALI-
FORNIA WITH ITS SECOND STORY WINDOW ARCADE, CLASSIC PEDIMENT AND MACHICOLATED CORNICE
ENTRANCE. The locallv owned bark plaved a significant role in the agriculture, mercan—
tile, building and financial activity of the local area prior to World War I. In
addition, the bank became a part of the early expansion of A.P. Giannini's' Bank of
Ttaly. : -

THE LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE AND ESTABLISHMENT OF THE WEST SIDE BANK RELATES DIRECTLY TO
THE INVOLVEMENT AND COMITTMENT TO THE AGRICULTURAL INTERESTS OF THE FOUNDERS, PHILIP
FABIAN AND ABE GRUNAUER. THESE MEN WERE LEADING SUPPORTERS IN BRINGING MANY PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE COMMUNITY, IRRIGATION TO THE DRY FARM LANDS AROUND TRACY, AND
EXPERIMENTING WITH AGRICULTURAL TECHNIQUES THAT WOULD IMPROVE THE AGRICULTURAL YIELDS
OF THE SURROUNDING COUNTRYSIDE. ABE GRUNAUER, WAS VICE-PRESIDENT AND GENERAL MANAGER
OF THE FABIAN-GRUNAUER STORE, TRACY’S LEADING GENERAL MERCANTILE FIRM THAT FINANCED
GRAIN OPERATIONS, LEASED LAND, AND BOUGHT AND SOLD GRAINS- FROM THIS BEGINNING,
A CHAIN OF GRAIN WAREHOUSES EXTENDING FROM TRACY TO ANTIOCH, AS WELL AS OTHER MERCAN-

TILE STORES IN NORTHERN CALIFORNIA, WERE UNDER THE LEADERSHIP OF FABIAN.

THE FARMERS IN THE TRACY AREA PRIMARILY DRY FARMED; AND THERE WERE TIMES WHEN THEIR
CROPS FAILED. DURING THE EARLY YEARS, THERE WERE NO BANKS AROUND; EXCEPT IN LARGE
CITIES SUCH AS SAN FRANCISCO AND STOCKTON, SO FABIAN AND GRUNAUER WOULD. ACT AS A
BANKING INSTITUTION AND LEND MONEY TO FARMERS WHO USED THEIR LAND OR GRAINS AS COL~
LATERAL .

IN 1910, TWO IMPORTANT THINGS HAPPENED TO GRUNAUER: HE BECAME TRACY’S FIRST MAYOR
AND STARTED A BANK. IN STARTING THE BANK HE ALLIED HIMSELF WITH HIS BROTHER-IN-
LAW, CHARLES SLACK, OWNER AND DEVELOPER OF A LARGE NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS
AND LARGE PARCELS OF FARM LAND IN TRACY.

THE WesT SIDE BANK OF TRACY FORMALLY OPENED ITS DOORS IN 1910 IN A BUILDING ON FRONT
STREET WITH A CAPITAL INVESTMENT oF $50,000.

BusiNEss FOR THE WEST SIDE BANK INCREASED AND PLANS FOR EXPANSION WERE MADE IN 1916
BUT DELAYED BY WORLD WAR [. IN 1918 THE DIRECTORS APPROVED CONSTRUCTION OF A BRICK
BUILDING ON A LOT, BOUGHT FROM CHARLES SLACK, ON THE CORNER OF /TH STREET AND CENTRAL
AvENUE. THIS MOVE KEPT PACE WITH THE COMMUNITY’S GROWTH AND THE BUSINESS DISTRICT'S
MOVEMENT NORTH ALONG CENTRAL AVENUE.

LESS THAN TWO WEEKS BEFORE THE COMPANY MOVED TO THE NEW ADDRESS ON CENTRAL AVENUE,

THE ANNOUNCEMENT WAS MADE THAT THE BANK HAD CHANGED ITS NAME FROM THE WEST SiDE BANK

To. TRACY To THE AMERICAN BANK oF TRACY. THE MAIN REASON GIVEN Fq§ THE CHANGE WAS
(SEe CONTINUATION SHEET 3) _ e



9. Major Bibliographical References

1. SanBorN Map oF Tracy, 1921

2. SMITH, AMBER, *Tracys Seconp Bank”, 1978
3. Tracy Press "JuBILEE Enlnou" 3

B. Tracy Press "ProGress EpiTion", 1963

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 075

Quadrangle name _ TRACY QUADRANGLE Quadrangle scale 1124000
UTM References
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Verbal boundacy description and justification

Al

SEE ATTACHMENT o

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state N/A code county N/A code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title  GARY A. MARCHIO, .URBAN PLANNER & LANDSCAPE DESIGNER

organization SCHACK & QUARTAROLI date 5-11-84
street & number 150 NORTHGATE DRIVE telephone (209) 239-4908
cityortown  MANTECA state CALIFORNIA

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated signiticance of this property within the state is:

____ national .- state _’i local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signatuf%%: /M\ﬂu P75 /Lu ., Kathrvn Cualtieri

title State Historic Preservation Officer date May 24, 1985
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4, OWNER OF PROPERTY

Dan R. Schack and Cynthia L. Schack
P, O, Box CJ
Tracy, California 95376

and

Michael L. Quartaroli and Janet Norton Quartaroli
6314 Shenahdoah Street
Stockton , California 95209
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RESPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE Tracy Historical Landmarks

DATE August 22, 1978 FEDERAL State __ County X Local
Depository forSurvey Records City Hall, 325 E,., 10th Street

City,Town Tracy STATE California 95376

TITLE Historic Resources Inventory
DATE 1977 __Federal XX State ‘ County Local
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS P. O. Box 2390, State of Calif.,, The Resources Agency

Dept. of Parks & Recreation

CITY,TOWN SACRAMENTO STATE California qggil
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THE INTERIOR SPACE IS PRIMARILY INTACT EXCEPT THAT THE REAR “ROSETTE” AND A PORTION
OF THE CEILING AND CROWN MOLDING HAS BEEN LOST DUE TO A LEAK IN THE ROOF.

THE MOST RECENT ALTERATIONS TO THE BANK INTERIOR OCCURRED IN 1975, WHEN THE BUILDING
WAS CONVERTED INTO A RESTUARANT AND TAVERN. THE ALTERATIONS INCLUDED THE CONSTRUCTION
OF A FALSE CEILING, JUST BELOW THE SECOND STORY WINDOW ARCADE, AND THE DIVISION OF THE
FIRST FLOOR SPACE INTO KITCHEN, TAVERN, AND SHOWER AREAS.

THE 1975 INTERIOR ALTERATIONS DO NOT SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER
OF THE INTERIOR SPACE AS THEY CAN BE REMOVED WITHOUT MATERIALLY AFFECTING THE CHARACTER
AND QUALITY OF THE SPACE-

THE ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING FOR THE BANK OF ITALY BUILDING WAS A

CORNER LOT AT 7/TH AND CENTRAL AVENUES IN THE HEART OF AN ACTIVE COMMERCIAL AREA AT THE
END oF CENTRAL AVENUE (THE MAJOR NORTH-SOUTH ARTERIAL) WHICH TERMINATED AT THE RAIL
RoAD STATION AND YARD ON 6TH STREET (FRONT ST.).

THE DOWNTOWN ENVIRONMENT CONSISTED OF MANY 2 STORY BRICK AND WOOD COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS
IN VARIOUS DESIGN STYLES RANGING IN PERIOD FRoM 1880’s to 1920.

THE 2 sTORY BANK OF ITALY BUILDING WAS BUILT ON A VACANT LOT ADJACENT TO AND NORTH OF,
AN EXISTING ONE STORY BRICK COMMERCIAL BUILDING WHICH EXTENDED FROM /TH ST. TO 6TH ST.
THE BANK oF ITALY DESIGN USED SIMILAR BRICK, AND CONTINUED THE SIMPLE LINES OF THE
ONE STORY BUILDING. [HE SIMILARITY IN MATERIALS AND DESIGN PROVIDE A UNIFYING EFFECT
TO NOT ONLY THE BLOCK FACE, BUT ALSO PROVIDES A UNIFYING THEME TO THE VARIETY OF ARCHI-
TECTURAL DESIGN IN DOWNTOWN TRACY.

TopAy, CENTRAL AVENUE HAS BEEN EXTENDED SOUTH ACROSS THE RAIL ROAD TRACKS INTO THE
EMERGING SOUTHSIDE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT. THIS EXTENSION AGAIN MAKES CENTRAL AVENUE
A MAJOR NORTH-SOUTH ARTERIAL FOR THE COMMUNITY.

WHILE THE USES OF THE DOWNTOWN BUILDINGS HAVE CHANGED, THE EXTERIORS OF VARIOUS BUILD"
INGS REMAIN PRIMARILY INTACT AND ARE UNDERGOING RENOVATION. THE ONLY NOTEWORTHY
EXCEPTION IS THE LOSS OF A 2 STORY BUILDING, NORTH ACROSS /TH STREET WHICH WAS DEMOL-
ISHED IN 1975. THE BUILDING'SPAD IS NOW A PARKING LOT, AND ITS LOSS LEAVES A HOLE IN
THE CENTRAL AVENUE STREETSCAPE, ESPECIALLY AT THE INTERSECTION OF /TH AND CENTRAL.
ALTHOUGH THE BUILDINGS LOSS TO THE STREETSCAPE IS SIGNIFICANT, IT IS PARTIALLY MITIGATED
WITH THE INCREASED VIEW OF THE BANK OF ITALY'S NORTH SIDE WINDOW ARCADE.

NOTWITHSTANDING THE ABOVE, THE BANK OF ITALY BUILDING, ALONG WITH ITS 1 STORY PARTNER,
CONTINUE TO PROVIDE A UNIFYING DESIGN THEME TO THE VARIED ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN OF THE
DOWNTOWN BUILDINGS AND ENHANCES THE STREETSCAPE WITH THEIR SIMPLE LINES, AND AS A
RESULT, THE ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING REMAINS PRIMARILY INTACT AND CONTINUES TO BE A
SIGNIFICANT PART OF COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY IN THE DOWNTOWN AREA-.
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THAT WEST SIDE BANK wAs "coupusmg TO ALL BUT THE OLD TIMERS" WHO REALIZED THE SIG™
NIFICANCE OF THE NAME "West SIDE", WHICH WAS SUPPOSED TO REPRESENT ALL LANDS AND
PEOPLES OF THE “GREAT WEST SIDE oF THE (SAN JoAQuiN) VALLEY”.

ON JuLy 28, 1919, THE AMERICAN BANK OF TRACY WELCOMED THE PEOPLE OF THE COMMUNITY
TO THEIR NEW HOME oN CENTRAL AVENUE.

InN 1921, THE AMERICAN BANK OF TRACY WAS PURCHASED BY THE STOCKHOLDER AUXILIARY CORP-
ORATION, A SYNDICATE OF THE A.P. GIANNINI’S BAank oF ITALY. IN THEIR BOOK, %LO_GBAEHI

MArauis JAMES AND BESSI.E R. JAMES DESCRIBED THE STOCKHOLDER AUXILIARY
ORPORATION ORGANIZATION AS BEING "DESIGNED TO MEET THE LAW THAT FORBIDS ONE BANK
TO BUY STOCK OF ANOTHER". CONSEQUENTLY, THE STOCKHOLDER AUXILIARY CORPORATION WAS
THE Bank OF ITALY’s “ALTER EGO-..(IN THAT IT) COULD DO MANY THINGS THE BANK COULD
NOT DO--.-.

PRIOR TO THE PURCHASE OF THE AMERICAN BANK BY THE STOCKHOLDER AUXILIARY CORPORATION,
THE BANK oF ITALY, IN 1916 VENTURED INTO THE INTERIOR VALLEY OF CALIFORNIA. FARMING
WAS BEGINNING TO BE BIG BUSINESS AND, ACCORDING TO ONE BANKING AUTHORITY, IT WAS
ESTIMATED THAT “A MAN WHO WAS GOING TO FARM IN CALIFORNIA IN THIS PERIoD (1916-1918)
HAD TO HAVE A CAPITAL AND CREDIT AMOUNTING TO MORE THAN $20,000". THE Bank oF ITALY
CATERED TO THE FARMER AND RURAL BRANCHES OF THE BANK GREW BECAUSE A.P. GIANNINI was
concerned with taking care of the little farmer. THg BANK OF ITALY' S LOAN POLICY was

TO HELP THE "LITTLE FELLOW' = THE MAN OF MODEST MEANS IN NEED OF A BANK.

THE TOWN OF TRACY WAS PLEASED WITH THE ACQUISITION OF THE AMERICAN BANK BY THE Bank
oF ITALY. TRACY WOULD HAVE ALL THE ADVANTAGES ENJOYED BY CITIZENS OF LARGE CITY
BANKS, AND BORROWERS OF LARGE SUMS OF MONEY WOULD NOT HAVE TO SEEK THEIR MONEY FROM
OUTSIDE THEIR HOME TOWN-

THRoueHoUT THE 1920’'s, TRACYITES WATCHED THEIR TOWN GROW BY LEAPS AND BOUNDS. NEW
BUSINESSES ARRIVED AND_ OLD BUSINESSES CONSTRUCTED NEW BUILDINGS. SUBDIVISIONS FOR
NEW HOMES OPENED, THE TRACY AMERICAN LEGION AIRPORT INAUGURATED. UTILITY COMPANIES
OPENED OFFICES IN TOWN, BEAUTIFICATION PROGRAMS STARTED, HIGHWAYS IMPROVED, AND THE
TracY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE SENT INFORMATION ACROSS THE COUNTRY TO LURE PROSPECTIVE
ciTiZENs To “HuB CITY" OF THE VALLEY. GRUNAUER STRONGLY SUPPORTED THESE IMPROVEMENT
MEASURES, AND ONE MAY BE SURE THAT THE BANK OF ITALY WAS INVOLVED IN THE FINANCIAL
PHASE OF THE PROJECTS.
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Verbal Boundary Description

A portion of Lots 25, 26 and 27 in Block 5, as shown upon Map entitled, CITY OF TRACY,
filed for record June 29, 1892 in Volume 2 of Maps and Plats, at Page 63, San Joaquin
County Records, described as follows:

BEGINNING at the Northwest cormer of Lot 27, Block 5, TOWN OF TRACY, filed in Volume

2 of Maps and Plats, Page 63, on June 29, 1892; thence Southerly along the Westerly
line of said Lot 27, a distance of 41,03 feet; thence Easterly along a straight line
to a point on the Easterly line of Lot 25, Block 5, which point is 41,05 feet Southerly
from the Northeast cormer of said Lot 25; thence Northerly along the Easterly line of
Lot 25 to the Northeast corner thereof; thence Westerly along the Northerly line of
Lots 25, 26 and 27, respectively, BlBck 5, to the point of beginning, said Northerly
line of Lots 25, 26 and 27 in Block 5, being on a 3°56' curve to the right.

Building occupies its historic lot.



BANK OF ITALY
628 Central Avenue
Tracy, San Joaquin County, CA

et

Manteca, California 95336

(209)2394908

150 Northgate Dr.

SCHACK & QUARTAROLI
Civil Engineering and L and Surveying

kn,mwa_x?l\

A portion of Lots 25, 26 and 27 in Block 5, as shown upon Map entitled, CITY OF TRACY,
filed for record June 23, 1892 in Volume 2 of Maps and Plats, at Page 63, San Joaquin
County Records, described as follows:

BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of Lot 27, Block 5, TOWN OF TRACY, filed in Volume
2 of Maps and Plats, Page 63, on June 29, 1892; thence Southerly along the Westerly
line of said Lot 27, a distance of 41.03 feet; thence Easterly along a straight line
to a point on the Easterly line of Lot 25, Block 5, which point is 41.05 feet Southerly
fram the Northeast corner of said Lot 25; thence Northerly along the Easterly line of
Lot 25 to the Northeast corner thereof; thence Westerly along the Northerly line of
Lots 25, 26 and 27, respectively, Block 5, to the point of beginning, said Northerly
line of Lots 25, 26 and 27 in Block 5, being on a 3° 56’ curve to tha right.
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